Trustees of Boston University v. Professor Abe Korn, No. 97-CV-12365-PBS (D. Mass. complaint filed Oct. 20, 1997).

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

TRUSTEES OF BOSTON UNIVERSITY,

Plaintiff,

v.

PROFESSOR ABE KORN, D/B/A TERM PAPER, SCHOOL & BUSINESS HELP LINE; COMPU-TYPE, D/B/A A+ TERMPAPERS; ASM COMMUNICATIONS, D/B/A A1 TERMPAPERS; RESEARCH ASSISTANCE AND CYNTHIA STONE, D/B/A RESEARCH ASSISTANCE; PETER REVSON, D/B/A TERM PAPER WAREHOUSE AND HIGH PERFORMANCE PAPERS; THE PAPER STORE ENTERPRISES, INC. D/B/A THE PAPER STORE, THOUSANDS OF PAPERS AND PRESTIGIOUS PAPERS; HAROLD KING AND WILL CANE, D/B/A PAPER SHACK; MARK TWEITO, D/B/A THE GRAY MASTER COMPANY AND PAPERZ.COM;

Defendants.

Plaintiff Trustees of Boston University, as and for its complaint against defendants, alleges:

INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action, inter alia, for declaratory and injunctive relief as well as compensatory and punitive damages brought by the plaintiff, Trustees of Boston University, against the defendants for their fraudulent and criminal actions against the University, its students, other universities and the general public. Plaintiff's claims arise out of defendants' participation in a scheme to defraud plaintiff and the public by selling term papers to students for submission as their own original work. This scheme allows students to receive course credit, and eventually diplomas, without completing the necessary degree requirements themselves. Defendants know or should know of the students' purpose when they conduct these transactions and use both the mails and wire to do so. Defendants' conduct violates 18 U.S.C. § 1341 and 1342 and M.G.L. c.271, § 50 and, as such, constitutes a "pattern of racketeering activity" under 18 U.S.C. § 1961. These actions on the part of the defendants also constitute tortious and criminal conduct under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

THE PARTIES

A. PLAINTIFF

2. At all times relevant to this action, plaintiff Trustees of Boston University (hereinafter the "University" or "Plaintiff") was and still is a charitable corporation, created pursuant to laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts which maintains an educational institution in Boston. In excess of 25,000 students are enrolled at the University in graduate and undergraduate courses seeking degrees. Such degrees are awarded by the University upon successful completion of a program of study pursuant to the statutory authority and public policy of the Commonwealth.

B. DEFENDANTS

3. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant Professor Abe Korn d/b/a Term Paper, School & Business Help Line was and still is an individual with a principal place of business at 9229 Kaufman Place, Brooklyn, New York and is a citizen of New York. Defendant Professor Abe Korn d/b/a Term Paper, School and Business Help Line contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

4. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant Compu-Type d/b/a A+ Termpapers was and still is a New Jersey Corporation with its principal place of business at 19 Cambridge Avenue, Jersey City, New Jersey and is a citizen of New Jersey. Defendant Compu-type d/b/a A+ Termpapers contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

5. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant ASM Communications Inc. d/b/a A1 Termpaper was and still is a Pennsylvania corporation with its principal place of business at 908 Little Shiloh Road, West Chester, Pennsylvania and is a citizen of Pennsylvania. Defendant ASM Communications Inc. d/b/a A1 Termpaper contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

6. Upon information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, defendant Research Assistance was and still is a California corporation with a principal place of business at 11322 Idaho Avenue, Suite 206, Los Angeles, California and is a citizen of California. Defendant contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

7. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant Cynthia Stone d/b/a Research Assistance, was and still is an individual residing in California and maintaining a place of business at 11322 Idaho Avenue, Suite 206, Los Angeles, California and is a citizen of California. Defendant Stone d/b/a Research Assistance contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

8. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant Peter Revson d/b/a Term Paper Warehouse and High Performance Papers, was and still is a Wisconsin citizen with a place of business at Post Office Box 44032, Milwaukee, Wisconsin. Defendant Revson contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

9. On information and belief, Defendant The Paper Store Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Paper Store, Thousands of Papers and Prestigious Papers is a corporation organized under the laws of the state of New Jersey with its principal place of business at 1103 Lilly Lane, Jackson, New Jersey 08527 and is a citizen of New Jersey. Defendant The Paper Store Enterprises contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

10. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendants Harold King and Will Cane d/b/a Paper Shack were individuals with a principal place of business at 1049 Southfield Road, Shreveport, Louisiana and are citizens of Louisiana. Defendants contract to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and are doing business in Massachusetts. 

11. On information and belief, at all times relevant to this action, Defendant Mark Tweito d/b/a The Gray Master Company and Paperz.com was an individual with a principal place of business at 2347 Cincinnati Street #2, San Antonio, Texas and is a citizen of Texas. Defendant Mark Tweito contracts to supply term papers and other research documents and materials to students in Massachusetts and elsewhere and is doing business in Massachusetts. 

12. Upon information and belief, each of the foreign corporate defendants has failed to file a Certificate of Condition for foreign corporations doing business in Massachusetts and each has failed to designate an agent for service within the Commonwealth pursuant to M.G.L. c. 181, § 4 and is in violation of said statute. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. Jurisdiction over the first count of this complaint arises under 28 U.S.C. 1331 and under the provisions of Section 1965 of the Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act ("RICO") of the Organized Crime Control Act of 1970, as amended, 18 U.S.C. § 1965, based upon a pattern of racketeering activity in which defendants have been engaged in connection with their operation of business in selling research papers and materials, consisting of violations of (a) 18 U.S.C. § 1341 relating to mail fraud; and (b) 18 U.S.C. § 1343 relating to wire fraud. 

14. Jurisdiction over the remaining counts of the complaint arises under 28 U.S.C. § 1332, as Plaintiff is a Massachusetts citizen and each defendant is a citizen of a state other than Massachusetts as well as under the doctrine of supplemental jurisdiction. The amount in controversy exceeds the sum of $50,000, exclusive of interest and costs. 

15. Venue lies in this district pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1965 and 28 U.S.C. 1391. 

INTRODUCTORY FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO EACH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

A. Education and Public Policy

16. It is part of the educational policy of the University and consistent with the public and educational policy of the Commonwealth that students at the University shall prepare and submit only their own work--and not that of another--in satisfaction both of course requirements and of degree requirements. Degrees granted to students by the University pursuant to authority from the Commonwealth presume the existence of this basic condition and the further condition that each student has honestly and fully satisfied the requirements and is thereby entitled to be awarded a degree. The integrity and intrinsic value of degrees granted by the University and by other universities is a matter of public policy and public concern to the Commonwealth, to the University, to its students and to the public who must deal with and rely on the significance and integrity of such degrees. 

17. An integral part of the University's overall relationship with its students is the agreement or understanding by which, among other things, the University provides courses of instruction to its students which, if satisfactorily completed and other conditions are met, will lead to the conferring of a degree under legal authority granted by the Commonwealth; the student's undertaking pursuant to this agreement or relationship is to adhere to the reasonable rules, regulations and policies of the University and to deal with it and its officers and employees honestly and in good faith. Part of such student's undertaking or obligation to the University is to do his own work (including the necessary research for the preparation of term papers and other materials submitted by him as his own work) and to refrain from practicing any deception on the University by submitting the work of another as his own. 

18. Similarly, each student's obligations to the University preclude any form of cheating, plagiarism, passing off of others' work as his own or similar conduct. Not only are such matters the policy of the University, but part of the public and educational policy of the Commonwealth. 

B. Defendants' Wrongdoing

19. The defendants are engaged in preparing or causing to be prepared term papers, themes, theses, research materials and similar works (herein collectively called "term papers") for sale to students, knowing or having reason to know that such term papers will be submitted or used by the students as their own work in satisfaction of course requirements leading ultimately to the awarding of a degree. On information and belief, certain of the defendants offer individually written term papers to meet specific requirements, and among other things state that they guarantee no duplication of such papers within an institution by keeping careful records of sales of term papers, their nature, content, recipient and the institution and course for which sold. 

20. As hereafter set forth, such sales and use of term papers and related conduct constitute an interference with the contractual or advantageous relationship between the University and its students, an interference with the educational policies and progress of the University, an inducement to, and assistance in, violating such policies, and a clear violation of the public policy of the Commonwealth. 

21. Such conduct by the defendants knowingly encourages, induces or aids the students to violate the University's policy and that of the Commonwealth, to break University rules and regulations, and to prevent the discharge of the students' moral and legal obligations to the University. 

22. Defendants' conduct knowingly encourages, induces or aids the student to deceive the University and to render fraudulent and spurious academic performance which is not readily detectable or apparent, and is clearly not intended to be. 

23. Such conduct further interferes with the University's relationship with its students and with its programs and policies by resulting in course credits being granted to students who may not be entitled to such credits and in degrees being awarded to such students who may not have earned such degrees through honest fulfillment of their obligations to the University and to the community. 

24. By such conduct, defendants not only debase and impair the educational programs and services offered to the public pursuant to authority granted by the Commonwealth, but may also corrupt the integrity and significance of a degree granted by the University. Further, such conduct may not only create an unfair slur on the vast majority of students who honestly fulfill course requirements, but result in unequal treatment for students who complete course requirements as a result of their personal efforts and receive the same degree as is received by students aided, abetted and induced by the defendants' unlawful conduct. 

25. The defendants' interference with the University's relationships with its students and with the University's programs, policies and academic requirements; and the defendants' clear violation of public policy are presently causing injury to the University and to the public and will continue to do so unless restrained by this court. On information and belief, some of the defendants openly boast of their accomplishments and their alleged legal invulnerability and have refused to desist from their improper conduct. Unless restrained, such conduct--which is widespread--will cause the University irreparable harm by its continued interference with the University's relationship with its students, its continued encouragement and assistance in deception practiced on the University and its continued interference with and violation of the educational and public policies of the Commonwealth. 

C. The Scope of the Problem

26. In Massachusetts alone, there are some 118 degree granting institutions serving approximately 420,000 students. Nationwide there are 3600 degree granting institutions having an annual enrollment of more than 14 million students. 

27. To date, the University's investigation into the prevalence of term paper sources has revealed dozens of persons and entities holding themselves out as "term paper" or "research" sources to college students. (See, Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 to Affidavit of Jennifer Pascarella.) 

28. Although many of the term paper companies (including some of the defendants sued here) include disclaimers on their promotional material to the effect that the papers they sell are "for research purposes only" and "should not be used for course credit" or the like, such disclaimers constitute a transparent effort to evade the laws of several states, including Massachusetts, which have enacted statutes specifically making the sale or distribution of such materials a crime. 

29. Term paper companies advertise and promote their services through fliers distributed on campus, advertisements in college-market magazines such as Rolling Stone, and, as in the case of defendants to this action, via the World Wide Web. 

30. The advertising claims made by defendants actively encourage the submission of defendants' products as the students' own work. 

·
"Term papers and research papers written from start to finish in all subjects for all high school and college levels. All papers are written by college professors. All term papers and other work are professionally printed on an HP LaserJet 4 Printer with 600 dpi resolution."1 

1 From defendant Abe Korn's website. See, Exhibit 4 to Affidavit of Jennifer Pascarella.

·
"Term papers got ya down? Working on several term papers at once? You've probably got a case of the...TERM PAPER BLUES??? 

"If you're like most students, you probably HATE WRITING TERM PAPERS! The hardest part is the research! And then it seems impossible to figure out the thesis statement, layout, format, for citation, and bibliography style!! 

"All you have to do is pick up the phone and call 1-800-90-WRITE Please have details of your research topic ready when you call..."2 

2 From defendant The Paper Store Enterprises, Inc.'s website. See, Exhibit 9 to Affidavit of Jennifer Pascarella. 

·
"Term paper sneak up on you? Can't find that resource that will make your research paper shine? Facing a deadline and don't know where you'll find the time? Paper Shack can help!"3 

3 From defendant Harold King d/b/a Paper Shack's website. See, Exhibit 11 to Affidavit of Jennifer Pascarella. 

31. These claims urge students to have their scholastic work done for them instead of doing it themselves. In some cases, defendants make explicit or implied claims as to the grades that have been received by their papers. These statements convey the impression that students who have submitted defendants' papers in the past have received good grades. They lure students into believing that, by purchasing defendants' term papers rather than doing the work themselves, they can be assured of creditable grades. 

·
"When my customers return for more reports they tell me that they have used my report as reference material and because of this help the received an excellent grade. A majority of their reports received grades that ranged from B to A+. 

"IS IT POSSIBLE TO RECEIVE A LOWER GRADE? Yes, if the teacher does not like you or does not believe that you wrote the paper."4 

4 From defendant Abe Korn's website. 

·
"Q. Am I guaranteed a good grade by incorporating HPP's informational material into my term paper? 

"A. No. While we have prepared tens of thousands of Professionally Prepared Research Documentsª which have gone on to support "A" papers, we cannot predict the grading quirks of individual professors."5 

5 From defendant Peter Revson's website. See, Exhibit 10 to Affidavit of Jennifer Pascarella. 

32. Defendants' refusal to "guarantee" grades is further evidence of defendants' knowledge that students are relying on defendants' term papers for grades and course credit. 

D. The University's Investigation

33. Prior to commencing this action, University representatives purchased term papers from each of the defendants. Many of the term papers obtained by the University bore no disclaimers and were ready to be submitted for academic credit without significant change of any kind. 

34. In the course of completing these transactions, University representatives engaged in extensive telephone conversations or e-mail correspondence with agents of each defendant. In each such conversation, the University representative made it clear that he or she needed the paper to fulfill a course requirement and that the paper was needed quickly, and would be turned in for credit at Boston University. 

35. None of the defendants or their agents refused to provide a term paper upon receipt of this information. Each, expressly or implicitly, recognized that the term paper was to be used for course credit. Many suggested ways in which the purchaser might alter or customize the term paper in order to conceal the fact that the paper was not the purchaser's own work. 

E. Prior Injunctions

36. From time to time, the University has obtained permanent injunctions against term paper companies. 

37. In 1981, the University obtained a judgment from the Massachusetts Superior Court, permanently enjoining four term paper companies from 

"...selling . . . any written or recorded term paper, thesis, theme or other research documents or materials (herein called "term papers")..." 

(Trustees of Boston University v. Minute Research Company, et al., Massachusetts Superior Court No. 10908, judgment dated May 14, 1981.) 

38. Defendant Research Assistance was one of the companies so enjoined by the Superior Court's order. As plaintiff has herein pleaded, Research Assistance and Stone continue to sell term papers to students in violation of this permanent injunction. 

39. On information and belief, some of the other defendants in this action are or may be successors or alter egos of term paper companies previously enjoined. 

40. Because of the continuing nature of the defendants' conduct and continuing violations of the University's rights and of the public policy and laws of the Commonwealth, the University has no plain, adequate or speedy remedy at law. 

F. The Harm To The University, Honest Students and The Public Caused By Defendants Illegal Conduct

41. The University sustains direct harm from the fraudulent and illegal conduct of defendants by, among other things, the tortious interference with its business and relations with its students; the time, effort and scarce charitable resources it is forced to expend to police academic fraud; the interference with its property rights in the form of the charter granted to it by the legislature to confer academic degrees; and the defendants' efforts to devalue the University's academic degrees. 

42. Honest students are directly harmed by defendants' illegal conduct in that defendants' products are used by dishonest students in competition with them for grades, degrees and admission to graduate and professional schools. 

43. The harm to the public caused by defendants' illegal conduct is the harm to the integrity of the academic degree (certifying that the holder of the degree has been educated, examined and found fit) upon which the public has the right to rely and the loss of respect for and confidence in the education system generally. 

44. The University, honest students and the public are direct victims of the fraud perpetuated by defendants and are the parties entitled to protection under the federal and state law claims pleaded here. 

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

COUNT I

(MAIL AND WIRE FRAUD/RICO)

45. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 though 40 of this complaint as though the same were more fully set forth herein. 

46. Defendants' knowing and intentional receipt of orders for research papers through the use of the telephone, facsimile, and mails, as well as the sending of research papers via mail and wire transmission with the knowledge and intent that they be used by students for submission as their own original work constitutes repeated violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1341 relating to wire fraud and 18 U.S.C. § 1342 relating to mail fraud in that it constitutes participation in a "scheme or artifice to defraud." Such conduct also constitutes acts of racketeering as it is defined under 18 U.S.C. § 1961 (1)(B). 

47. Over a lengthy period of years and continuing through the present, each defendant, by the Internet, telephone and Electronic Mail, has solicited and received hundreds, or thousands of orders for termpapers. 

48. During that same period, each defendant sent hundreds, perhaps thousands, of termpapers via the mail or wire transmission in interstate commerce. 

49. The acts of defendants have the same or similar purposes, results, participants, victims or methods of commission, or otherwise are interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events. 

50. The acts of defendants as set forth throughout this complaint amount to or pose a threat of continued criminal activity. 

51. The acts of defendants, including the acts of mail and wire fraud, were a regular way of conducting the ongoing business of each defendant. 

52. Defendants are persons or entities capable of holding legal or beneficial interest in property and, as such, are subject to the Racketeering Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1961(3). 

53. During all relevant times, each defendant was a principal in a pattern of racketeering activity and/or constituted an enterprise as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1961(4). 

54. The wire fraud and mail fraud perpetrated by defendants upon plaintiff and the public constitutes a pattern of racketeering activity consisting of more than two acts of racketeering activity, all of which occurred after the effective date of 28 U.S.C. § 1961 et seq., and the last of which within ten years after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961 (5). 

55. Defendants used income that they derived from the above described pattern of racketeering in the operation of their enterprises, the activities of which affect interstate commerce, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(a). 

56. As a direct and proximate result of the foregoing violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 by defendants, Boston University and the public have sustained injury to their property and other rights. 

COUNT II

(M.G.L. c.271, § 50)

57. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 47 hereof as though the same were fully set forth herein. 

58. By selling the above referenced research papers defendants have violated Massachusetts General Law Chapter 271, section 50, which states: 

Whoever, alone or in concert with others, sells to another, or arranges for or assists in such sale for another, a theme, term paper, thesis or other paper or the written results of research, knowing or having reason to know that such theme, term paper, thesis or other paper or research results or substantial material therefrom will be submitted or used by some other person for academic credit and represented as the original work of such person at an educational institution in the Commonwealth or elsewhere without proper attribution as to source, or whoever takes an examination for another at any educational institution in the Commonwealth, shall be punished by a fine of not more than one hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than six months, or both. 

59. As a direct and proximate result of defendants' violation of Chapter 271, Section 50 of the Massachusetts General Laws, The University and the public have sustained and continue to sustain injury. 

COUNT III

(TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE)

60. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 50 hereof as though the same were more fully set forth herein. 

61. Defendants' conduct knowingly encourages, induces or aids the student to violate the policy of the University and the policy and laws of the Commonwealth, to break University rules and regulations, and to prevent the discharge of the students' contractual and legal obligations to the University. 

62. Defendants' conduct knowingly encourages, induces, or aids the student to deceive the University and to render fraudulent and spurious academic performance which is not readily detectable or apparent and is clearly not intended to be. 

63. Such conduct further interferes with the University's relationship with its students and with its programs and policies by resulting in course credits being granted to students who may not be entitled to such credits and in degrees being awarded to students who may not have earned such degrees through honest fulfillment of their obligations to the University and to the community. 

64. The defendants' interference with the University's relationship with its students and with the University's programs, policies, and academic requirements; and the defendants' clear violation of public policy are presently causing Boston University and the public injury and will continue to do so unless restrained by this court. Unless restrained, such conduct, which is widespread, will cause the University irreparable harm by its continued interference with the University's relationship with its students, its continued encouragement and assistance in deception practiced on the University and the public, and its continued interference with and violation of the educational and public policies and laws of the Commonwealth. 

COUNT IV

(M.G.L. 93A)

65. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 55 hereof as though the same were fully set forth herein. 

66. At all times relevant hereto, defendants were engaged in trade or commerce. 

67. Defendants, by their conduct described herein, have engaged in multiple unfair and deceptive acts or practices within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

68. Defendants' use or employment of unfair and deceptive acts and practices constitute willful and knowing violations of Federal and State law, including, but not limited to, M.G.L. c. 93A § 11. 

69. Defendants' conduct offends public policy as it has been established by statutes, the common law or otherwise; is immoral, unethical and unscrupulous; and causes significant harm and substantial injury to the University and the public. 

COUNT V

(Common Law Fraud)

70. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 60 hereof as though the same were fully set forth herein. 

71. Defendants' conduct as described throughout this complaint constitutes a fraud upon Plaintiff and other universities and the public. 

COUNT VI

(Declaratory Judgment)

72. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 62 hereof as though the same were fully set forth herein. 

73. An actual case or controversy has arisen between the University and Defendants regarding the sale and distribution of term papers in violation of law and public policy. 

74. As a result of defendants' repeated and continuing conduct, the University seeks a declaratory judgment that: 

a. The conduct of the defendants is an unjustified interference with the contractual or other advantageous relationship between the plaintiff and its students. 

b. The conduct of the defendants unjustifiably interferes with the educational programs and policies of the University and with the ability of the University to carry out its educational functions under the law. 

c. The conduct of the defendants constitutes an unlawful deceit or deception practiced on the plaintiff and the public. 

d. The conduct of the defendants violates the law and public policy of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

e. The agreements, arrangements or contracts between the student and the defendants by which a defendant sells or provides term papers or other material to students, knowing or having reason to know that such papers will be submitted or used as the student's own work in satisfaction of course requirements, are illegal and void and contrary to the public policy of the Commonwealth. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff respectfully requests judgment against defendants as follows: 

1. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

a. On all counts against the Defendants, that the Defendants, their agents, servants and employees and all others acting in concert or participation with them be enjoined from selling, renting, transferring, delivering or otherwise providing, directly or indirectly, any written or recorded term paper, thesis, theme or other research documents or materials ("term papers") to any student residing in or attending any educational institution located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

b. On all counts against the Defendants, that the defendants, their agents, and employees and all others acting in concert or participation with them be enjoined from destroying, defacing, altering, damaging, removing, concealing, changing or otherwise improperly dealing with books, records, ledgers, checks, correspondence, notes, papers, memoranda, computations, reports, tabulations or any other written, recorded, taped, photographic or computer records or data relating in any way to the conduct of their business or to their contracts, relationships or dealings with students, employees, agents or other third persons. 

c. On all Counts, that the Court issue an Order to show cause and Temporary Restraining Order and, after hearing, issue a preliminary injunction pursuant to Prayers a. and b. herein. 

d. On the first Count against defendants, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(a), that the court permanently enjoin the defendants from engaging in any activities involving or connected with the sale, distribution or provision of any thesis, academic paper or results of research. 

DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

e. On all counts against Defendants, declaratory judgment as set forth in Count VII of this Complaint. 

DISSOLUTION

f. On the First Count against the defendants, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(a), that the court order the dissolution of the defendant enterprises. 

SEIZURE

g. On the First Count against the Defendants, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964(a), that this court order the seizure of all written or recorded term papers, theses or research documents or other such materials currently in the possession of the defendants. 

DAMAGES

h. On the First Count against defendants, jointly and severally, damages in an undetermined amount, plus interest, which sum under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c) is to be trebled, plus attorneys' fees and costs; 

i. On each Count against the Defendants, damages in an undetermined amount, plus interest; and that such damages be doubled or trebled as allowed by existing law. 

j. On each count against defendants, an award of punitive damages in an amount sufficient to deter future illegal conduct by these defendants and others. 

k. Awarding Plaintiff attorney's fees as well as the costs and disbursements incurred in connection with this action; and 

l. Awarding Plaintiff such other, further and different relief as this Court deems fair, equitable, and proper.

TRUSTEES OF BOSTON UNIVERSITY

by its Attorney

______________________________

ROBERT B. SMITH

BBO# 546580

Boston University

Office of the General Counsel

125 Bay State Road

Boston, MA 02215

(617) 353-2326

Dated: October 20, 1997

